
MECHANICSBURG BOROUGH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 26, 2015 
 

ATTENDANCE: 
Planning Commission Members: Vice Chairman Daryl Ackerman, Secretary Tim DeWire, Bruce Smith, Kyle Hollick, 
Michael Phillips and Harry Baker 
Absent: Chairman Chris Knarr 
 
Borough Council:  Council Liaison Scott Pellman, Mark Stoner, Gary Weber, John McDermott, Rod Whitcomb and 
Kyle Miller. 
Borough Staff: Greg Rogalski – Borough Engineer, Patrick Dennis – Borough Manager, Roger Ciecierski – Codes and 
Zoning Officer and Sara Heenan – Administrative Assistant. 
Cumberland County Planning Department: Kirk Stoner 
Applicants:  Tara Hiepler – Landmark Homes, Lee Bothel, Alpha Consulting Engineers, Jon Andrews - McNees Wallace 
& Nurick and Jim Henke - Pioneer Management, LLC. 
Press:  None. 
Others: Jason Wheeler, Michael Welt and Jim Van Kirk. 
 
Next Meeting:  November 23, 2015 @ 6:30 p.m. 
Work Session: November 16, 2015 @ 6:30 p.m. (CANCELLED) 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Acting Chairman Ackerman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENT REFLECTION/ROLL CALL: 
Acting Chairman Ackerman led those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance followed by a moment of silent reflection. 
Attendance was taken and a quorum was present. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Acting Chairman Ackerman asked if there was public comment for issues that were not on the agenda.  None were 
offered.   

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (ACTION): 

A. August 24, 2015 – Regular Meeting. 

• Information/Discussion: Acting Chairman Ackerman stated that copies of the minutes were included 
in this evening’s packet. 

• MBPC Action: Phillips made a motion to approve the minutes as presented, Smith seconded the motion. 
The motion passed with all in favor. 

B. September 28, 2015 – Regular Meeting. 

• Information/Discussion: Acting Chairman Ackerman stated that copies of the minutes were included in 
this evening’s packet. 

• MBPC Action: Baker made a motion to table the minutes and Phillips seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all in favor. 
 

5. CORRESPONDENCE/UPDATES (INFORMATION): 
A. Committees/Boards/Commissions Updates.  

1. Cumberland County Planning Commission. 
a. Cumberland County Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Economic Development, Ch. 6) 

Stoner stated that all the information needed on the County’s Comprehensive Plan Amendments was 
included in the handout distributed in this evening’s packets. 

Stoner also gave a brief explanation as to why Cumberland County left the Tri-County Planning Commission. 
2. Historic Architectural Review Board.  DeWire reported that there was one application for the October 

HARB Meeting. The American Legion’s application was recommended for approval to Borough Council with 
conditions. The Board also selected their 2015 HARB Award recipients. Hollick asked how the HARB Awards 
are announced. DeWire explained that they are presented at a Borough Council Meeting and usually written 
about in the Newsletter as well. 

3. Environmental Advisory Council/Shade Tree Commission.  Baker stated that the EAC meeting for 
October was pushed back to the 27th due to the Halloween parade. He noted that he will not be able to attend 
and that DeWire will attend for him to answer any questions they may have. 



B. Municipal Notification of Developments with Regional Impacts. 
1. Winding Hills Stage 8 – Upper Allen Township – Winding Hill Road - Residential. Ackerman 

stated that he did not feel there would be any impact from the development. DeWire agreed that it is 
downstream from the Borough and should have minimal impact. 

C. Training 
1. Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Packet – (Information 

on Conferences, Trainings, Programs, etc.) Ackerman stated that a packet of informational sheets 
on conferences, trainings, etc. from the DCNR were provided in this evening’s packets. DeWire noted that 
most of the programs were grant writing workshops. 

 
6. PLANS (ACTION):  

A. Preliminary Submission – Landmark Homes – 1017 South Market Street. 
1. Discussion and Possible Action 

Acting Chairman Ackerman noted that there was a work session last week at which the plan was 
discussed. He then asked if the Applicant wished to make any comments or a presentation. Andrews 
stated that they had no presentation, but hoped to get through the remaining two modifications and any 
outstanding comments the County or Borough Engineer might have and come away from the meeting 
with a recommendation for conditional approval. 
Ackerman suggested addressing the modifications first, directing the Commission to the September 30th 
letter from Pioneer on behalf of Landmark Homes, LLC, detailing their request for relief on the amount of 
shrubbery required. Ackerman asked for questions or comments from the Commission. DeWire stated 
that based on the discussion from the work session he does not object to the modification request. With 
no other comment from the Commission, Ackerman asked for a motion. DeWire motioned to recommend 
approval of modification request of Chapter 22 Section 604.F.4B of the SALDO regarding that not less 
than 5% of the tract be planted with shrubbery. Hollick seconded, there was no further discussion and the 
motion passed with all in favor. The Commission moved on to section 22-604.F.2 regarding sidewalks on 
both sides of street in residential and nonresidential areas. Ackerman noted that the modification request 
asks that the required sidewalk be pathway instead. Ackerman noted that the intent is still there. 
Ciecierski stated that he feels the connectivity is still there as well. Andrews explained that Landmark is 
still in the process of securing rights from the Speedy-Diamond Group to put the pathway in on their 
property but they have no reason to think that everything won’t go as they hope. Ciecierski stated that if 
approved the modifications will be made to the drawings. DeWire noted that the gist of the modification is 
to move the walkway off of the curb line. Andrews agreed stating that the idea is that they wouldn’t want a 
walkway on such a busy street anyway. Hollick asked how wide the pathway would be. Andrews stated it 
would be 5 feet wide. Baker inquired as to how snow removal would be handled. Andrews explained it 
would be maintained the same as all the rest of the common facilities in the community. DeWire noted 
that Henke responded to the comments that the Apartment buildings will have breezeway access through, 
so there will be no need for a sidewalk extension on the side. DeWire mentioned that he had no problem 
as long as access is provided along the front of the property. DeWire motioned to recommend approval of 
the modification request to the SALDO Section 604.F.2 regarding the sidewalks being required on both 
sides of the street in residential and nonresidential areas as requested in the modification request by 
Pioneer Management along Market Street. Baker seconded and the motion passed with all in favor and no 
further discussion. 
Ackerman then transitioned the Commission to approval of the Plan itself, noting that the Engineer 
issued some recommended conditions in which he tried to outline some things discussed at Work Session 
& previous meetings. DeWire requested that before doing that he wants to discuss comments from 
Rogalski in the review letter dated October 23. Specifically, Item 8 under Subdivision and Land 
Development regarding new streets being laid out to continue existing streets, discussed previously. 
Rogalski clarified that there is some conflict related to TND specifications as well as the current 
subdivision and land development ordinance. Essentially, in a normal area the street width would be 
extended at the same width. In this scenario, as discussed in the past, the road will taper down in width, 
which will present an opportunity for gateway elements. Ackerman asked if that could be handled in the 
final submission. Rogalski clarified that it can and that this is about as clean a letter as possible at this 
point. DeWire asked if on Number 8 under Stormwater, the hydraulic grade line elevations for a 100 year 
storm event is something still existing post revisions. Rogalski clarified that on the last round of 
comments it was requested that the hydraulic grade line be identified. He wanted to make sure that if the 
system would be full the streets themselves could convey the excess flow. Pioneer provided 20-30 areas 
that they had looked at. There are about a dozen more that Pennoni would like to have looked at. Now it is 
just a matter of documenting and revising one page, not a deal breaker in anyway. DeWire asked if 
secondary drainage areas would be provided as well, Henke assured that they would. 
The discussion briefly touched on gateway signage and what it would look like, it was determined that 
those details would be taken care of in the Final Plan phase. 
DeWire noted that the rest of the comments are administrative in nature and that, agreeing with Rogalski, 



he feels this is as clean a document as can get until things get into the HOA & permitting stages. 
Ackerman asked for comments from the County. Stoner stated that he did not have any comments, 
everything was satisfied. 
Phillips asked Rogalski about traffic item E1 - Existing Intersections in the letter dated October 23. 
Rogalski explained that there is a waiver associated with said item, which is why he left it on. The 
Commission already took positive action on this item, but Rogalski left it on because when the plan gets to 
the Developer’s Agreement there is a fee-in-lieu of associated with performing improvements that will be 
incorporated into the Developer’s Agreement. 
The Commission moved on to review the newest letter from Pennoni. Ackerman asked if the letter dated 
September 30 could be made a condition of approval. Rogalski suggested wording it “any outstanding 
issued identified in the September 30th letter”. Hollick stated that he felt there were no deal breakers, but 
commented on the committees that haven’t received the response comments from Pioneer yet. Ciecierski 
stated that a lot of those comments and concerns are tied into the Developer’s Agreement. Dennis 
suggested the Commission make a condition to be contingent upon the Developer’s Agreement. Ackerman 
asked for any other questions or comments from the Commission and clarified that the two conditions 
would be contingent upon the Developer’s Agreement and the September 30th letter from Pennoni. 
Ackerman then asked for comments from the public or Council. 
Dennis stated that he is going to try to reach out to Upper Allen Township prior to Council’s approval due 
to what appears to be some confusion coming from both their office and their residents regarding 
stormwater and flooding. 
Phillips motioned to approve the Preliminary Subdivision Plan for Legacy Park including any outstanding 
issues of the September 30th Pennoni letter. Rogalski suggested that he recommend approval related to 
conditions set forth in the October 26th letter from the Borough Engineer, the September 30th letter from 
Pioneer Management and approval of the Developer’s Agreement. The amended motion was seconded by 
Tim DeWire, with no further discussion it passed with all in favor. 
Andrews thanked the Commission for their work to get the Plans reviewed and keep things moving. 
Hollick thanked the Applicant in return for their quick response time to all of the Commission’s requests. 

 
7. OLD BUSINESS (ACTION):  

None. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS (ACTION):  

None. 
 
9. COMMENTS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Secretary DeWire asked that motorists yield to pedestrians in crosswalks. 
Smith asked about who is responsible for the deteriorated directional signage on Brandy Lane for tractor trailer 
trucks. Councilman Whitcomb stated that he thought they were state signs. Manager Dennis stated that he would look 
into it and if they were the Borough’s, he would have them replaced. 
DeWire noted that the new pickle ball and basketball courts at Memorial Park are very nice, he and his family enjoy 
using them. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT:  
With no further business to be discussed, Baker motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:26 p.m. DeWire seconded the 
motion, which passed with all in favor. 


